
FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Thursday, June 23, 2022 

2:30 p.m. 
Town Hall    

 

1.  Call to order 
2. Reading/approval of minutes 
3. Unfinished Business 
4. New Business 

a.  Shepherdstown Public Library Funding Request 
5. Mayor’s Report 

 
  

   

          



Finance Committee Minutes

Wednesday March 16, 2022

1:00 PM, Town Hall


1. Call to Order


1. Mayor call meeting to order at 1:02.


2. Committee members present:  J. Auxer, C. Roberts (phone), J. Ford


3. Staff present:  A. Body, F. Welch, A. Beall, B. Bennett


4. Visitors:  None


2. Reading/Approval of Minutes 


1. Minutes of the Dec. 2021 meeting were approved without comment.


3. Unfinished Business - None


4. New Business


1. 2022-2023 General Fund Budget (General Fund Levy Estimate)


1. Proposed budget was presented by A. Boyd and B. Bennett. Summary of 
the general budgeting strategy was to begin with a 5% estimated increase in 
both income and expenses, to customize particular entries where the 
increase is known to be higher or lower than 5% and, finally, to adjust some 
entries in order to produce a balanced budget.


2. J. Ford questioned the large increase in Police salaries and it was explained 
that there is a plan to hire an additional full-time officer.


3. C. Roberts enquired as to how the Parks and Rec. Committee could obtain 
additional funding for a planned trail project. It was noted that the full 
amount of the Hotel/Motel tax had not yet been allocated to appropriate 
accounts (some was allocated to General Budget accounts) and when that 
was adjusted, as it must be, a portion could be allocated to the trails project.


4. J. Ford moved and C. Roberts seconded that the proposed budget be 
recommended to Town Council for approval.  The motion passed 
unanimously without further discussion.


2. Potential Annexation Cost & Benefit Analysis


1. A. Beall presented that outlined the estimated financial costs and benefits 
potentially associated with annexation of various commercial properties near 
Town.  After some discussion of what appears to be obvious financial 
benefits, it was decided to add this to the Town Council agenda as a 
discussion item before it is pursued any further.




5. Financial Reporting - None available


6. Mayor’s Report - None


The meeting was adjourned at 1:25.


Respectfully submitted, 


J. Ford




























































































From: Hali Taylor
To: Amy Boyd; Jim Auxer; Bob Keller Library; Jack Eggleston; Rosemary Nickerson; Sally Brasher; Terry Kramer
Cc: JimFord Forward; Cheryl Roberts
Subject: RE: Shepherdstown Library Request to Appear at Finance Meeting
Date: Thursday, April 21, 2022 4:42:10 PM

Dear Amy: The Shepherdstown Public Library would like to request to be placed on the agenda
for the finance committee in June. Please let me know the date and time.
 
Thank you,
 
Hali
 
Hali Taylor, Director
Shepherdstown Public Library
100 East German Street
P.O. Box 278
Shepherdstown, WV  25443
(304) 876-2783 (T)
(617) 710-7757 (C)
 

mailto:hali@sheplibrary.org
mailto:clerk@shepherdstown.us
mailto:jimauxer@yahoo.com
mailto:rockymarsh2@outlook.com
mailto:jackegg4@yahoo.com
mailto:rosemarynickerson@gmail.com
mailto:sbrasher@shepherd.edu
mailto:terrencekramer@yahoo.com
mailto:jim.ford@shepherdstown.us
mailto:cdlroberts@frontiernet.net


DATE:  June 19, 2022 
 
TO:  Shepherdstown Town Council 
 
FROM: Chris Stroech, Councilperson 
 
RE:  Shepherdstown Public Library – Request for Increased Support 
 
Purpose: 
 
 In April, 2022, Hali Taylor, Director of the Shepherdstown Public Library, made a 
presentation to the Town Council and requested increased funding and support for the Library.  
The Town is currently paying the Library $900.00 per month.  The Library has requested that 
the Town pay a monthly amount of $1,600.00 and take care of mowing and snow removal at the 
new location.  The Finance Committee is scheduled to take up this request at its regular 
meeting scheduled for June 23, 2022, at 2:30pm.  Councilperson Stroech has obtained and 
compiled certain information that might prove helpful in evaluating this increased funding and 
support request.   
 
Relevant Authorities: 
 
 The Library was established by a Town Ordinance effective November 10, 1970.1  The 
current appliable Town Ordinance was effective January 1, 1971.2  In my opinion, this 
Ordinance contains the following relevant provisions, in part: 
 

CHAPTER     .     An ordinance establishing a Public Library and to provide for its 
operation, maintenance and support. 
 
SECTION     .     Library Board to be a Corporation; Vesting of Title to Bequests 
or Donations.     The Board of Directors of each Public Library shall be a 
corporation; and as such it may contract and be contracted with, sue or be sued, 
plead and be impleaded, and shall have and use a common seal. 
 
 The title to all bequests or donations of cash or other personal property or 
real estate for the benefit of such Library shall be vested in the Board of Directors 
to be held in trust and controlled by such Board according to the terms and for 
the purposes set forth in the deed, gift, devise or bequest; Provided, however, 
that the person making the bequest or donation of cash or other personal 
property or real estate for the benefit of such Library shall have the right and 
privilege to vest the title thereto to a Trustee, or Trustees, of his own selection, 

 
1 Attachment #1 – TC Meeting Minutes 11/11/70. 
2 Attachment #2 – Ordinance. 



 

 - 2 - 

and to provide for the selection of successor Trustees, and to designate the 
manner in which said fund or property shall be Invested and used. 
 
SECTION     .     Cooperation with Jefferson County Court.     The 
Shepherdstown Public Library Commission shall the right to cooperate with the 
Jefferson County Court in the establishment of branch Libraries within the county 
and to offer free use of the Library to persons in Jefferson County and to receive 
funds from the said Jefferson County Court for said purposes. 
 
SECTION     .     Cooperation with Library Commission, State of West Virginia.     
The Shepherdstown Public Library Commission shall the right and power to 
cooperate with the West Virginia Library Commission. 
 

 West Virginia Code §10-1-1, et seq., governs public libraries.3  In my opinion, this 
Statute contains the following relevant provisions, in part: 
 
  §10-1-1.  “Public library” and “governing authority” defined. 

The term “public library” as used in this article shall be construed to mean a 
library maintained wholly or in part by any governing authority from funds derived 
by taxation and the services of which are free to the public, except for those 
charges for which provision may be made elsewhere in this article.  The term 
shall not, however, include special libraries, such as law, medical or other 
professional libraries, or school libraries which are maintained primarily for school 
purposes.  The term “governing authority” shall be construed to mean county 
court, county board of education or the governing body of any municipality. 
 
§10-1-2.  Power of governing authority to establish and maintain libraries; 
financing. 
A governing authority either by itself or in cooperation with one or more other 
such governing authorities, shall have the power to establish, equip and maintain 
a public library, or to take over, maintain or support any public library already 
established.  Any library established, maintained, or supported by a governing 
authority may be financed either (1) by the appropriation from the General Funds 
of the governing authority of a sum sufficient for the purpose, or (2) by the 
imposition of an excess levy for library purposes, in accordance with the 
provisions of section sixteen, article eight, chapter eleven of this code. 
Such sums as are appropriated hereunder may be transferred to the public 
library board for deposit and disbursement as the public library board shall direct.  
By such transfer the governing authority designates the public library board as its 
disbursing agent. 

 

 
3 Attachment #3 – West Virginia Code, Chapter 10. 



 

 - 3 - 

 The Town is considered a Governing Authority for the Library, along with the County and 
Board of Education, which are also considered Governing Authorities for the Library.  Pursuant 
to Chapter 10 alone, the Town, as a Governing Authority, may finance the Library through direct 
appropriation or by excess levy.  Director Taylor advises that the State Library Commission 
uses the terms “governing authority” and “funding authority” interchangeably.4   
 
Library Support to Date: 
 
 The Library received from the Town 20% of the hotel occupancy tax from July 2001 to 
January 2013.  The total amount received for this 11.5 year period was $89,386.18, or an 
average of $7,772.71 per year, with varying monthly distributions.  Beginning in January 2013, 
and continuing through June 2022, the Library has received $10,800.00 annually, made with 
monthly payments of $900.00 from the General Fund.  The total amount received for this 9.5 
year period was $102,600.00.  Thus, the total amount the Library has received in regular 
payments from the Town since July 2001 is $191,986.18.5 
 
 Additionally, the Town has made several special payments to the Library as follows:  
$50,000.00 (7/18) and $2,500.00 (8/16).  Thus, the total amount of special payments to date is 
$52,500.00.6 
 
 The Town owns the Old Market House, where the Library has been located since it 
opened in 1971.  The Library did not pay rent from 1971 to 1999.  In October 1999, the Town 
and Library entered into a formal Lease Agreement7, whereby the Town agreed to lease the 
Market House (excepting the Women’s Club’s use of the second floor) to the Library for 25 
years.  The Town agreed that an annual rent of $1.00 was fair and adequate consideration as 
benefitting both the community and public.  The Lease Agreement provides that the Library was 
to raise funds from public and private sources to restore, renovate and maintain the Market 
House. 
 

The Town later paid $5,000.00 to the Women’s Club to vacate use of the second floor.  
During the Lease term, the Town paid $44,036.99 for Market House restoration, repairs and 
maintenance.8  It is unknown how much the Library spent for these purposes.  Following the hit 
and run in July 2021, the Town paid an additional $87,686.33 for related repairs, and insurance 
then reimbursed the Town $81,994.53.9   
 
 The Town donated the land where the new Library has been built.  The Town Council 
has resolved that it “fully supports the efforts of the Shepherdstown Library Board of Directors to 
finance, construct and equip a new library facility at the Clarion Road site donated by the Town 

 
4 Attachment #4 – Legislative Rules for Library Commission, Section 2.11. 
5 Supporting data is available upon request. 
6 Supporting data is available upon request. 
7 Attachment #5 – Lease Agreement. 
8 Supporting data is available upon request. 
9 Supporting data is available upon request. 



 

 - 4 - 

of Shepherdstown; encourages the Shepherdstown Library Board of Directors in their efforts to 
complete the new library as soon as possible, and commends the project to the citizens of this 
area for their financial support.”10 
 
Library Financials: 
 
 For FY 2021, the Library received total income of $241,585.53 from the following 
sources:  State (38%), County (34%), Board of Education (12%), Non-Tax Revenue [donations, 
grants, etc.] (12%) and the Town (4%).  Total expenses were $249,220.64.11 
 
 For FY 2022, the Library expects income of $248,280.00 from the following sources:  
State (37%), County (33%), Board of Education (12%), Non-Tax Revenue (14%) and the Town 
(4%).  Total expenses are budgeted at $248,480.00.12 
 
 For FY 2023, the Library has projected a total operating budget of $303,569.00.13 
 
Current Request for Increased Support: 
 
 The Library has requested that the Town pay a monthly amount of $1,600.00 ($700.00 
increase) and take care of mowing and snow removal at the new location.  Any cash 
appropriations must come from General Funds. 
 
Considerations: 
 
 Based upon the information obtained and in my opinion, the Committee and Council 
might consider the following: 
 

1. The Town has funded the Library in some amount since it was established in 1971.  
Funding for the Library from the Town has increased over time. 

2. The Library has additionally received annually funding from the State, County and Board 
of Education.  Are these amounts expected to increase or decrease? 

3. The Library supplements this taxed-based revenue with non-taxed-based revenue such 
as donations, grants, etc.  Are these amounts expected to increase or decrease? 

4. Considering the new facility and its location outside of Town, should the Town’s annual 
support for the Library be adjusted in any way? 

5. Should any continued support for the Library be made in cash, in kind services or a 
combination of both? 

6. If cash payments are made, from what source? 
7. What is the expected annual cost of the mowing and snow removal services? 

 
10 Attachment #6 – Resolution. 
11 Attachment #7 – FY2021 ACTUALS. 
12 Attachment #8 – FY2022 BUDGET. 
13 Attachment #9 – FY2023 DRAFT BUDGET. 



 

 - 5 - 

8. In what other ways can the Town support the Library (grants, excess levy, etc.)? 
9. Should a long-term commitment and agreement be made regarding all support to be 

provided by the Town to the Library to manage expectations moving forward? 
10. The Lease for the Market House will expire on June 30, 2024.  Does the Library intend 

to occupy the Market House until that date?  Does the Library intend to have any 
presence “in Town”?  Can the Lease be terminated early in order for the Town to 
effectively use the Market House for other purposes? 

 



ATTACHMENT #1 



ATTACHMENT #2



ATTACHMENT #2



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #3



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #4



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #5



ATTACHMENT #6



ATTACHMENT #7



ATTACHMENT #7



ATTACHMENT #7



ATTACHMENT #8



ATTACHMENT #8



ATTACHMENT #8



ATTACHMENT #9



ATTACHMENT #9



ATTACHMENT #9


	June 2022 Finance Committee
	Mar 2022 Finance Comm Draft Minutes
	SPL Submittal
	RE_ Shepherdstown Library Request to Appear at Finance Meeting
	LIBRARY MEMO 06-19-22
	LIBRARY MEMO 06-19-22
	ATTACHMENT #1 - TC MEETING MINUTES 11-11-70
	ATTACHMENT #2 -- ORDINANCE
	ATTACHMENT #3 - WV CODE CHAPTER 10
	ATTACHMENT #4 - LEGISLATIVE RULES FOR STATE LIBRARY COMMISSION
	ATTACHMENT #5 - LEASE
	ATTACHMENT #6 - RESOLUTION
	ATTACHMENT #7 - FY2021 ACTUALS
	ATTACHMENT #8 - FY2022 BUDGET
	ATTACHMENT #9 - FY2023 DRAFT BUDGET




